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1531 through 1543, any person whose act 
or omission was the basis for the sei-
zure may be charged a reasonable fee 
for expenses to the United States con-
nected with the transfer, board, han-
dling or storage of such property. If 
any fish or wildlife is seized in connec-
tion with a violation of the Lacey Act 
Amendments of 1981, 16 U.S.C. 3371 
through 3378, or any property is seized 
in connection with a violation of the 
Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conserva-
tion and Management Act, 16 U.S.C. 
1801 through 1882, any person convicted 
thereof, or assessed a civil penalty 
therefor, may be assessed a reasonable 
fee for expenses of the United States 
connected with the storage, care and 
maintenance of such property. Within 
a reasonable time after forfeiture, 
NOAA will send to such person by reg-
istered or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, a bill for such fee. The bill 
will contain an itemized statement of 
the applicable costs, and instructions 
on the time and manner of payment. 
Payment must be made in accordance 
with the bill. If the recipient of the bill 
objects to the reasonableness of the 
costs assessed he or she may, within 30 
days of receipt, file written objections 
with NOAA at the address stated in the 
bill. NOAA will promptly review the 
written objections and within 30 days 
mail the final determination to the 
party who filed them. NOAA’s deter-
mination will constitute final agency 
action on the matter. 

§ 904.508 Voluntary forfeiture by aban-
donment. 

(a) The owner of seized property may 
voluntarily forfeit all right, title, and 
interest in the property by abandoning 
it to NOAA. Voluntary forfeiture by 
abandonment under this section may 
be accomplished by various means, in-
cluding, but not limited to: expressly 
waiving any claim to the property by 
voluntarily relinquishing any right, 
title, and interest by written agree-
ment or otherwise; or refusing or oth-
erwise avoiding delivery of returned 
property; or failing to respond within 
90 days of service of any certified or 
registered notice regarding a return of 
seized property issued under § 904.510(b). 

(b) Property will be declared finally 
forfeited by abandonment, without re-

course, upon a finding of abandonment 
by NOAA. 

§ 904.509 Disposal of forfeited prop-
erty. 

(a) Delivery to Administrator. Upon for-
feiture of any fish, wildlife, parts or 
products thereof, or other property to 
the United States, including the aban-
donment or waiver of any claim to any 
such property, it will be delivered to 
NOAA for storage or disposal according 
to the provisions of this section. 

(b) Disposal. Disposal may be accom-
plished by one of the following means 
unless the property is the subject of a 
petition for remission or mitigation of 
forfeiture or disposed of by court order: 

(1) Return to the wild; 
(2) Use by NOAA or transfer to an-

other government agency for official 
use; 

(3) Donation or loan; 
(4) Sale; or 
(5) Destruction. 
(c) Purposes of disposal. Disposal pro-

cedures may be used to alleviate over-
crowding of evidence storage facilities; 
to avoid the accumulation of seized 
property where disposal is not other-
wise accomplished by court order; to 
address the needs of governmental 
agencies and other institutions and or-
ganizations for such property for sci-
entific, educational, and public display 
purposes; and for other valid reasons. 
In no case will property be used for per-
sonal purposes, either by loan recipi-
ents or government personnel. 

(d) Disposal of evidence. Property that 
is evidence may be disposed of only 
after authorization by the NOAA Office 
of General Counsel. Disposal approval 
usually will not be given until the case 
involving the evidence is closed, except 
that perishable property may be au-
thorized for disposal sooner. 

(e) Loans—(1) To institutions. Property 
approved for disposal may be loaned to 
institutions or organizations request-
ing such property for scientific, edu-
cational, or public display purposes. 
Property will be loaned only after exe-
cution of a loan agreement which pro-
vides, among other things, that the 
loaned property will be used only for 
noncommercial scientific, educational, 
or public display purposes, and that it 
will remain the property of the U.S. 
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Government, which may demand its re-
turn at any time. Parties requesting 
the loan of property must demonstrate 
the ability to provide adequate care 
and security for the property. Loans 
may be made to responsible agencies of 
foreign governments in accordance 
with the Convention on International 
Trade in Endangered Species of Wild 
Fauna and Flora. 

(2) To individuals. Property generally 
will not be loaned to individuals not af-
filiated with an institution or organi-
zation unless it is clear that the prop-
erty will be used in a noncommercial 
manner, and for scientific, educational, 
or public display purposes which are in 
the public interest. 

(3) Selection of loan recipients. Recipi-
ents of property will be chosen so as to 
assure a wide distribution of the prop-
erty throughout the scientific, edu-
cational, public display and museum 
communities. Other branches of NMFS, 
NOAA, the Department of Commerce, 
and other governmental agencies will 
have the right of first refusal of any 
property offered for disposal. The Ad-
ministrator may solicit applications, 
by publication of a notice in the FED-
ERAL REGISTER, from qualified persons, 
institutions, and organizations who are 
interested in obtaining the property 
being offered. Such notice will contain 
a statement as to the availability of 
specific property for which transferees 
are being sought, and instructions on 
how and where to make application. 
Applications will be granted in the fol-
lowing order: other offices of NMFS, 
NOAA, and the Department of Com-
merce; U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service; 
other Federal agencies; other govern-
mental agencies; scientific, edu-
cational, or other public or private in-
stitutions; and private individuals. 

(4) Loan agreement. Property will be 
transferred under a loan agreement ex-
ecuted by the Administrator and the 
borrower. Any attempt on the part of 
the borrower to retransfer property, 
even to another institution for related 
purposes, will violate and invalidate 
the loan agreement, and entitle the 
United States to immediate reposses-
sion of the property, unless the prior 
approval of the Administrator has been 
obtained under § 904.510(d)(5). Violation 
of the loan agreement may also subject 

the violator to the civil penalties pro-
vided by the laws governing possession 
and transfer of the property. 

(5) Temporary reloans; documents to ac-
company property. Temporary reloans 
by the borrower to another qualified 
borrower (as for temporary exhibition) 
may be made if the Administrator is 
advised in advance by the borrowers. 
Temporary loans for more than thirty 
days must be approved in advance in 
writing by the Administrator. A copy 
of the original loan agreement, and a 
copy of the written approval for reloan, 
if any, must accompany the property 
whenever it is temporarily reloaned or 
is shipped or transported across state 
or international boundaries. 

(f) Sale. (1) Any fish, wildlife, parts or 
products thereof, and other property 
which has been voluntarily forfeited by 
abandonment to NOAA may be sold or 
offered for sale, with the exception of 
any species or property which is other-
wise prohibited from being sold at the 
time it is to be sold or offered for sale. 

(2) Property will be sold in accord-
ance with current Federal Property 
Management Regulations (41 CFR 
chapter 101) or U.S. Customs laws and 
regulations, except that NOAA may: 

(i) Sell at fair market value perish-
able fish pursuant to the summary 
sales provisions of 15 CFR 904.505; and 

(ii) Sell, destroy, or otherwise dispose 
of property for which it is determined 
the expense of keeping it is dispropor-
tionate to the value thereof. 

(3) The proceeds of sale may be used 
to reimburse NOAA for any costs which 
by law NOAA is authorized to recover 
or to pay any rewards which by law 
may be paid from sums that NOAA re-
ceives. 

(g) Destruction. (1) Property not oth-
erwise disposed of may be destroyed. 

(2) Destruction will be accomplished 
in accordance with the requirements of 
41 CFR parts 101 through 145. 

(3) When destroyed, the fact, manner, 
and date of destruction and the type 
and quantity destroyed must be cer-
tified by the official actually destroy-
ing the property. 

(4) No duly authorized officer of 
NOAA shall be liable for the destruc-
tion or other disposition of property 
made pursuant to this section. 

VerDate Nov<24>2008 10:41 Feb 03, 2010 Jkt 220050 PO 00000 Frm 00083 Fmt 8010 Sfmt 8010 Y:\SGML\220050.XXX 220050er
ow

e 
on

 D
S

K
5C

LS
3C

1P
R

O
D

 w
ith

 C
F

R



74 

15 CFR Ch. IX (1–1–10 Edition) § 904.510 

(h) Recordkeeping. A disposal form 
will be completed each time property is 
disposed of pursuant to the policy and 
procedure established herein, and will 
be retained in the case file for the prop-
erty. These forms will be available to 
the public. 

§ 904.510 Return of seized property. 
(a) Return. In cases where NOAA, in 

its sole discretion, determines that for-
feiture of seized property would not be 
in the best interest of the U.S. Govern-
ment, NOAA will make a reasonable 
attempt to determine the party that 
the facts of record indicate has a pre-
dominant ownership interest in the 
seized property and, provided such a 
determination can be made, will ar-
range for return of the seized property 
to that party by appropriate means. 

(b) Notice. NOAA will serve a Notice 
of the Return of property as provided 
by § 904.3, to the owner, consignee, or 
other party the facts of record indicate 
has an interest in the seized property. 
The Notice will describe the seized 
property, state the time, place, and 
reason for the seizure and return, and 
will identify the owner or consignee, 
and if appropriate, the bailee of the 
seized property. The Notice of the re-
turn also will state that the party to 
whom the property is being returned is 
responsible for any distribution of the 
property to any party who holds a valid 
claim, right, title or interest in receiv-
ing the property, in whole or in part. 
The Notice also will provide that on 
presentation of the Notice and proper 
identification, and the signing of a re-
ceipt provided by NOAA, the seized 
property is authorized to be released. 

PART 905—USE IN ENFORCEMENT 
PROCEEDINGS OF INFORMATION 
COLLECTED BY VOLUNTARY FISH-
ERY DATA COLLECTORS 

Sec. 
905.1 Scope. 
905.2 Definitions. 
905.3 Access to information. 
905.4 Use of information. 
905.5 Exceptions. 

AUTHORITY: 16 U.S.C. 1853(f). 

SOURCE: 60 FR 39251, Aug. 2, 1995, unless 
otherwise noted. 

§ 905.1 Scope. 
This part applies to the use, in en-

forcement proceedings conducted pur-
suant to the Magnuson Act, the 
MMPA, and the ESA, of information 
collected by voluntary fishery data col-
lectors. 

§ 905.2 Definitions. 
When used in this part: 
Consenting owner means the owner, 

operator, or crewmember of a vessel 
carrying a voluntary fishery data col-
lector. 

Enforcement proceeding means any ju-
dicial or administrative trial or hear-
ing, initiated for the purpose of impos-
ing any civil or criminal penalty au-
thorized under the Magnuson Act, 
MMPA, or ESA, including but not lim-
ited to, any proceeding initiated to: 
Impose a monetary penalty; modify, 
sanction, suspend or revoke a lease, li-
cense or permit; secure forfeiture of 
seized property; or incarcerate an indi-
vidual. 

ESA means the Endangered Species 
Act, as amended, 16 U.S.C. 1531 et seq., 
and implementing regulations. 

Information means all observations, 
data, statistics, photographs, film, or 
recordings collected by a voluntary 
fishery data collector for conservation 
and management purposes, as defined 
by the Magnuson Act, MMPA, or ESA, 
while onboard the vessel of a con-
senting owner. 

Magnuson Act means the Magnuson 
Fishery Conservation and Management 
Act, as amended, 16 U.S.C. 1801 et seq., 
and implementing regulations. 

MMPA means the Marine Mammal 
Protection Act, as amended, 16 U.S.C. 
1361 et seq., and implementing regula-
tions. 

Secretary means the Secretary of 
Commerce, the Secretary of the Inte-
rior, their chosen designees, or any 
other Federal agency authorized to en-
force the provisions of the Magnuson 
Act, MMPA, or ESA. 

Vessel means any vessel as defined at 
16 U.S.C. 1802(31). 

Voluntary fishery data collector means: 
(1) Any person, including an observer 

or a sea sampler; 
(2) Placed aboard a vessel by the Sec-

retary; 
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